
 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 04/09/2023 
 
 
To, 
The Head - Listing & Compliance 
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (MSEI) 
Vibgyor Towers, 4th Floor, 
Plot No. C-62, G-Block, 
Opp. Trident Hotel,  
Bandra Kurla Complex,  
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400098 

 
ISIN: INE288U01011  
 
Sub: Annual Report 2022-23  

 
Dear Sir/Ma’am 
 
This has further to our revised communication dated August 26, 2023 intimating the AGM of 
the Company to be held on Wednesday, September 27, 2023. 
 
In compliance with Regulation 34(1)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith the Annual Report of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 along with Notice of AGM. The same has also 
been sent to the members through electronic mode. 
 
The Annual Report including AGM Notice are also available on the Company’s web-site. 
www.be-swasth.in 

 
Thanking you 
 
Yours Faithfully 
For and On Behalf of 
Be Swasth Healthcare Limited 
(Formerly known as Ujala Commercials Limited) 
 
 
 
 Karan Jindal 
(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) 
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present to you Annual Report of M/s BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED for the 

Financial Year 2022-23. 

Despite the challenges posed by the pandemic in the past, we are committed towards developing 

strong online platform to deliver best quality telehealth services at very Nominal rates. For this, the 

Company launched a mobile Application i.e. “BE- SWASTH” which is available on Android Platform 

where people can take consultation from our Qualified experienced MBBS Doctors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Management, I want to express my gratitude to our share-

holders for their continued support and confidence in the Company. We in the Board, earnestly 

believe that it is our duty to listen to every shareholder, introspect and further improve our perfor-

mance or take corrective actions. The Board has continuously engaged with all major investors, in 

particular with the Founders, and we will continue to do so. The Management and the Board commit 

to you to further accelerate our efforts to navigate the Company through these daunting changes and 

deliver performance, worthy of its proud heritage.

Thank you for your continued support of our Company.
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COMMITTEES OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

NAME OF DIRECTORS DESIGNATION

Ms. Nirmal Jain Non Executive Director

Mr. Ganesh Ray Independent Director

Mrs. Sushma Jain Independent Director

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

NAME OF DIRECTORS DESIGNATION

Ms. Nirmal Jain Non Executive Director

Mr. Ganesh Ray Independent Director

Mrs. Sushma Jain Independent Director
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NOTICE

ORDINARY BUSINESS: -

(CIN: L93000DL1985PLC021397) (Formerly Known As Ujala Commercials Limited) is scheduled to be held on 

New Delhi-110063, to transact the following Business:-

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2023 along with the reports of Independent Auditors and Directors thereon and in this regard, to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Ms. Sonali Gupta (DIN: 09277676), who retires by rotation in 
terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and showed her willingness to be re-appointed. and in this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Com-
panies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
the re-appointment of Ms. Sonali Gupta (DIN: 09277676), Director and CFO of the Company, who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment, as a Director liable to retire by rotation.”

1. 

2. 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are 
hereby considered and adopted”

SD/-
Karan Jindal
Company Secretary
(M. No. A71387)

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 4, 2023

Registered office: 487/63, 1st floor,
National Market, Peeragarhi,
New Delhi-110087
CIN: L93000DL1985PLC021397
E-mail: cs@be-swasth.com
Phone no: 011-46142960
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Be Swasth Healthcare Limited

Wednesday, 27th September, 2023 at 10:00 A.M at Maharaja Banquets, A-1/20B, Paschim Vihar, Main Rohtak Road,



NOTES: -
A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE  OR MORE PROXIES 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY. THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE USED SHOULD REACH THE REGIS-
TERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT 
HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

1. 

requirement to annex Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of Director/ Manager seeking re-appointment, in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 (including 
Secretarial Standard-2) are annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

3. 

Relevant documents, if any and statutory registers will be open for inspection, in physical form, at the Regis-
tered Office of the Company on all working days up to the date of the AGM and will also be available for inspec-
tion at the AGM. Members seeking inspection of such documents can send an e-mail to cs@be-swasth.com

4. 

Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to 
section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting alongwith the 
Specimen Signature of representative authorised under said resolution to attend & vote on behalf of the meet-
ing.

5. 

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 
meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through ballot paper.

6. 

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall 
not be entitled to cast their vote again.

7. 

Pursuant to Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a person shall act as proxy of not more than 50 members and 
holding in aggregate not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. 
Member holding more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other member. A Proxy Form is 
annexed to this Report in Form MGT-11.

8. 

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

9. 

In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, all requests for transfer of secu-
rities shall be processed only if the securities are held in dematerialized form. Members holding shares of the 
Company in physical form are requested to kindly get their shares converted into demat/electronic form to get 
inherent benefits of dematerialisation since physical transfer of equity shares/ issuance of equity shares in 
physical form have been disallowed by SEBI. Members can contact Company’s RTA at beetalrta@gmail.com for 
assistance in this regard.

10. 

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular dated January 25, 2022 has mandated Listed Companies 
to issue securities in demat form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certifi-
cate; claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; Renewal/ Exchange of securities certificate; Endorsement; 
Sub-division/ Splitting of securities certificate; Consolidation of securities certificates/ folios; Transmission and 
Transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and 
signed Form ISR – 4.

11. 

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through Physically or through proxy/Authorised represen-
tative shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Such person should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the meeting.

12. 

The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 37 th AGM is annexed.13. 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Man-
agement and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting 
to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting 
system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

14. 

The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.be-swasth.in. The 
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. MSEI Limited at www.msei.in. AGM 
Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com

15. 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, Hindu Undivided Family, Non-resident Indians etc.) are 16. 
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2. As there is no special business to be transacted at the 37th Annual General Meeting, therefore there is no



required to send a scanned copy (PDF/ JPG Format) of their board resolution/ authority letter/ power of attor-
ney etc., authorizing their representatives to attend/ participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM on their behalf 
and to vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/ authority letter/ power of attorney etc. shall be sent 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail through their registered e-mail address at apoorvandassociates@gmail.com with a 
copy to evoting@nsdl.co.in

The Integrated Annual Report including the Notice of the AGM for the FY 2022-23 is being sent to all the Mem-
bers whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participants (‘DPs’) unless any 
Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. The Company shall send a physical copy of the Integrat-
ed Annual Report to those Members who request the same at cs@be-swasth.com mentioning their Folio No. / 

at www.be- swasth.in and may also be accessed from the relevant section of the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. at www.msei.in. The AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.ns-
dl.com.

17. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, there-
fore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to Company’s RTA, i.e. 

18. 

Members are also requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail 
address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registration of nomination, power of attorney registration, Bank 
Mandate details, etc. to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at 
www.be-swasth.in in case the shares are held in physical form, in the prescribed form. Changes intimated to 
the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s records.

23. 

entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting/ voting at the AGM.

Members who are holding shares in physical form in identical names in more than one folio are requested to 
write to RTA enclosing their Share Certificate(s) to enable the Company to consolidate their holding into one 
folio.

20. 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, the 20 
th September 2023 to Wednesday, the 27 th September, 2023 (both days inclusive).

21. 

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, the shareholders of the Company may nominate a person on 
whom the shares held by him/them shall vest in the event of his/her death. Shareholders desirous of availing 
this facility may submit nomination in SH-13.

22. 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with the MSEI Ltd. The Company has not paid the annual listing 
fees to the MSEI Limited for the year 2022-23. The Company will pay it soon in due course of time.

24. 

(Membership No.-F12734; C.P. No.-21063) as Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a fair and trans-
parent manner.

For remote e-voting at AGM, shareholders who have not yet registered their email address and in consequence 
the e-voting notice cannot be serviced may temporarily get their email address registered with the Company’s 

beetalrta@gmail.com.

25. 

It is clarified that for permanent registration of email address, shareholders are requested to register their 
email addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with their concerned Depository Participants and in respect 

Services Private Limited, Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada 
Harsukh Dass Mandir, New Delhi-110062 India by following due procedure.

26. 

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and 
there after unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 2 working days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 

other person authorized by him in writing, who shall counter sign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith.

28. 

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.be-swasth.in and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of 
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and communicated to the concerned stock 
exchanges.

29. 
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DP ID and Client ID. The Notice convening the 37th AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company

BEETAL Financial & Computer Services Private Limited .

19. The cut-off date, i.e. Wednesday, 20th September 2023, shall be considered for determining shareholders

27.The Company has appointed Mr. Apoorv Srivastava, Company Secretary in practice of M/s Apoorv & Associates

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited by sending a mail at

of physical holdings, with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, BEETAL Financial & Computer

consolidated scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or any



least Seven days prior to the date of the AGM so that answers may be provided at theMeeting.

Company at the following address:-

Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Centre,
Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir,
New Delhi-110062
Phone: 91-11-29961281-83
Fax: 91-11-2996 1284
Email- beetal@beetalfinancial.com
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30.Queries on the Annual Report and operations of the Company, if any, may please be sent to the Company at

31. Members are requested to notify any change in their address, if any to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the

M/s BEETAL Financial & Computer Services Private Limited

In all correspondence, please quote your DP ID & Client ID or Folio Number.



THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

HOW DO I VOTE ELECTRONICALLY USING NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM?

STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM

05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 20 th 
September, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

A. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURI-
TIES IN DEMAT MODE

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in demat
mode) login through their
depository participants

01.

02.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you 
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS 
e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

01. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id 
and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cd-
slindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my 
easi username & password.

02. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

03. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 
option.

04. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see 
e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://w-
ww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e- Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Sharehold-
er/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e- Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

NSDL Mobile App is available on
App 
Store

Google
Play
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The remote e-voting period begins on 24th September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 26th September, 2023 at

share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 20th September, 2023.



Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:

a. For Members who hold shares in demat
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******.

b.For Members who hold shares in demat
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c. For Members holding shares in
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***

B. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING FOR SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUAL 
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE AND SHAREHOLDERS HOLD-
ING SECURITIES IN PHYSICAL MODE.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.ns-
dl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a. If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 
vote.

a.  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
b. Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evot-
ing.nsdl.com.
c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@ns

b. If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 
and the system will force you to change your password.
c. How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
(i)  If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is commu-
nicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email 
and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physi-
cal form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 
(ii)  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on 
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.
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co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered 
address etc.
d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycleis in active status.

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/-
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to apoorvandassoci-
ates@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individu-
als, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@be-swasth.com
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@be-swasth.com. If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at 
step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.
3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and pass-
word for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents
4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individu-
al shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” 
or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on: 022 - 4886 
7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  or send a request to Mr. Abhishek Mishra at evoting@nsdl.co.in

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page.
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

STEP 2: CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLYON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE DEPOSITORIES FOR PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND REGISTRATION OF E 
MAIL IDS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE:

HOW TO CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLYON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM?

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

SD/-
Karan Jindal
Company Secretary
(M. No. A71387)

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 4, 2023
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT

[In pursuance of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) & Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Name of the Director

DIN

Father’s Name

Date of Birth

Age

Nationality

Date of first appointment on the Board

Qualification

Experience & Expertise in specific
functional area

Terms & Conditions for
appointment/ reappointment

Details of Remuneration

Remuneration last drawn

Shareholding in the Company (No. & %) 

Number of Shares held in the Company

Number of Board Meetings
attended during the year

Chairman/Member of the Committees
of the Boards of Directors

Relationship with Directors, Manager
and other KMP of the Company

Ms. Sonali Gupta

09277676

Mr. Gajanand Gupta

11.07.1994

29 years

Indian

11.08.2021

She is a MBA graduate

By handling Company’s finances along with the growth of the company,
she is responsible for the smooth functioning of the Company’s operations

As per the Companies Act, 2013

6,00,000 p.a.

6,00,000 p.a.

30,000 shares, 2.68% 

30,000 shares

Three (3)

None

None

SD/-
Karan Jindal
Company Secretary
(M. No. A71387)

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 4, 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

EMBARKING ON A NEW DECADE

FINANCIALS

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND OPERATIONS

3. DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

4. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

Be Swasth Healthcare Limited  (‘the Company’) is a public limited Company domiciled in India and Incorporat-
ed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Shares of the Company are listed on the Metropolitan 
Stock Exchange of India Limited.
To cater the continuously growing need of healthcare solution in the country, we established a Tele Health 
platform which offers a complete healthcare solution for patient that can be availed from the comfort of home, 
office, or anywhere else. For this, the Company developed a Mobile Based Application with the name of 
“Be-Swasth” which is available on Android. 

The loss of the Company has reduced to Rs. 4,13,010 (Rupees Four Lacs Thirteen Thousand and ten only) in the 
Financial Year 2022-23 as Compare to the loss Rs. 24,00,640 (Rupees Twenty Four Lacs Six Hundred and forty 
only) in the previous year.

The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2022-23 and there has been 
no transfer to General Reserve because the Company has suffered loss during the year under review.

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2023 was Rs. 5,00,00,000.

The Paid-up share capital as at March 31, 2023 stands at 1,11,90,000 comprising of 11,19,000 equity shares of Rs. 
10/- each fully paid up.

The Company has been working continuously to change and transform healthcare facilities by providing 
convenient mode to access qualified doctors at nominal rates. For this, the Company launched a online 
platform through which Medical Consultation are being provided to the patients at only Rs. 100 (Rupees Hun-
dred Only). The Company want to contribute the society by making doctors available at their very door step. 
The Company also arranges medical camps frequency to make people aware about wellbeing and to contrib-
ute towards providing affordable healthcare services in the country.

31-Mar-23Particulars 31-Mar-22

-

(3,12,954)

28,23,707

25,10,753

(1,00,056)

(4,13,010)

-

(18,89,069)

27,91,397

9,02,327

(5,11,571.06)

(24,00,640)

Total ExpenditureLess:

Less:

Total Revenue

Provision for Income Tax-Current

Provision for Deferred Tax

Profit/(Loss) After Tax

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax (PBT
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As previously disclosed to shareholders, the Company had changed its nature of business and diversified into 
Healthcare Sector in the year 2021.

There were no material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the Company occurring 
between March 31, 2023 and the date of Board Report.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

In compliance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the 
following are the Directors of the Company designated as follows;

All Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of Independence as provided in 
the Section 149 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's code of 
conduct.

Ms. Sonali Gupta, Director & CFO of the Company will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible has offered herself for re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment.

Ms. Poorti Goel, Compliance Officer and Company Secretary of the Company resigned on 11th November, 2022.
Mr. Karan Jindal has been appointed as Compliance Officer and Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 
August 7th 2023.
Mr. Pranshu Poddar, Whole-time Director of the Company resigned w.e.f. September 1st, 2023.

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

8. DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023 shall 
be uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the link www.be-swasth.in

9. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 
time being in force), the Directors of the Company state that: 

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable account-
ing standards and Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no material 
departures from the same

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMANT

Date of AppointmentDesignationName of Director/KMPSr. No. Date of Cessation

02

01

04

05

06

07

08

09

03

Mr. Virender Kumar Jain

Mr. Ganesh Ray

Mrs. Sushma Jain

Mr. Karan Jindal

Mr. Pranshu Poddar

Ms. Sonali Gupta

Ms. Sonali Gupta

Ms. Poorti Goel

Ms. Nirmal Jain

Non-Executive Director

Chairman, Independent Director

Independent Director

Company Secretary

Whole Time Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Non-Executive Director

March 05, 1999

February 10, 2016

August 26, 2019

August 7, 2023

June 15, 2021

August 11, 2021

Dec 23, 2021

November 13, 2019

May 10, 2006

September 1st, 2023

November 11. 2022

APPOINTMENT, RE-APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;
The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;
The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
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11. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION AND
     DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

15. DETAILS & NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS CONDUCTED
      DURING THE YEAR

The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on Director’s Appointment and Remunera-
tion including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other 
matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy is enclosed in Annexure-2 as a 
part of this report in compliance with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
      186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The details of the Loan gave by the Company, if any, are mention in Note No. 3 of the Audited Financial State-
ments. The Company has not given any Guarantee to any person and made any investment during the year 
under review.

14. AUDITORS’ AND AUDIT REPORTS

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, M/s PVR-N & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration 
No. 004062N) were appointed as Company’s Statutory Auditors by the shareholders at their 33rd AGM held on 
September 27, 2019 for a period of Five Years i.e. till the conclusion of 38th Annual General Meeting. 

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED
     TO IN SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no Related Party Transaction entered during the financial year 2022-2023, except payment of remu-
neration to Director and KMP’s, by the Company as defined in the Policy on RPTs. Accordingly, the disclosure of 
RPTs as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure - 3.
Pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations, the resolution for seeking approval of the shareholders on material relat-
ed party transactions is being placed at the AGM.

(I) STATUTORY AUDITORS

There were no frauds reported by the statutory auditor to the audit committee or the board under section 143 
of the act. The observations made in the auditor's report read together with relevant notes thereon are self-ex-
planatory and hence do not call for any further comments from the Directors under section 134(3)(f) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(II) AUDITORS REPORT

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company had appointed M/s Apoorv & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Auditors 
have submitted their report, confirming compliance by the Company of all the provisions of applicable corpo-
rate laws. The Report does contain four qualification, the views of management on that is mentioned in this 
Board Report. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as “Annexure-4” to this report.

(III) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Company has appointed M/s DSAS & Company, Chartered Accountants as internal auditors of the company 
pursuant to section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has optimum composition of Executive and Non-Executive Directors during year ended 31st 
March, 2023. The Board comprises of six Directors including 2 woman directors, Out of six directors, one is 
whole time director, one is executive director and four are Non-Executive Directors including Two Independent 
Directors.
During the year, the Board met Four (4) times. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the 
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial Standard-1 and Listing Regulations.

Meetings of the Board are generally held at the registered office of the Company. During the financial year 
2022-23, the Board met four times as per the details mentioned below:-

(IV) INTERNAL AUDITOR

The requirement for the annual ratification of the auditor’s appointment at the AGM has been omitted pursu-
ant to Companies (amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 7, 2018.
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Date of Board MeetingS. No.

01

02

03

04

May 30, 2022

July 20, 2022

November 11, 2022

February 8, 2023

Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2023 and attendance at the Board meetings held during 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 and at the last Annual General Meeting ('AGM') are given in table below:

Mr. Virender Kumar Jain and Ms. Nirmal Jain are related as husband and wife. No other Director is related to any 
other Director

Name of the Director Category
Attendance at the Meetings

Board Meeting Attended Last AGM Attended

Mr. Virender Kumar Jain
(DIN: 00036894)

Ms. Nirmal Jain
(DIN: 00036929)

Mr. Ganesh Ray
(DIN: 00463635)

Mr. Pranshu Poddar
(DIN: 09203812)

Mrs. Sushma Jain
(DIN: 08545336)

Ms. Sonali Gupta
(DIN: 09277676)

Non- Executive Director

Non- Executive Director

Independent Director

Whole Time Director

Independent Director

Executive Director, CFO

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS

Independent Directors met (through Video conferencing) on March 3, 2023, without the attendance of Non-In-
dependent Directors and members of the management of the Company. The Independent Directors, inter alia 
evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Chairman of the Company and the Board of Direc-
tors as a whole, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. They also assessed the quality, content and timeli-
ness of flow of information between the Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effec-
tively and reasonably perform its duties.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

In Compliance with the Regulation 25 (7) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company familiarises its Independent Directors with the 
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 
operates, business model of the Company, Legal updates, etc. In this regard, the Company follows a structured 
familiarisation programme for the Independent Directors. The details related thereto are displayed on the 
Company’s website (www.be-swasth.in). 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Board has constituted several Committees of Directors namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remunera-
tion Committee with specific terms of reference. The Committees operate as empowered agents of the Board 
as per their terms of reference that set forth the purposes, goals and responsibilities. Committee members are 
appointed by the Board with the consent of individual Directors. The Committees meet as often as required or 
as statutorily required. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees of the Board are placed at Board meet-
ings for noting.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Audit Committee primarily constitutes a formal and transparent arrangement for accurate financial report-
ing and strong internal controls. The Committee through regular interaction with external and internal auditors 
and review of financial statements ensures that the interests of stakeholders are properly protected.

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE
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All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and a majority has accounting or financial manage-
ment expertise.

The Audit Committee functions according to its terms of reference that define its composition, authority, 
responsibility and reporting function sin accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regu-
lation 18 of Listing Regulations which, inter-alia, include the following:

The Audit Committee presently consists of three Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee meets at least 
four times in a year with a gap of not more than 120 days between two meetings. During the year the Commit-
tee met four times i.e. on May 27, 2022, July 20, 2022, November 11, 2022 and February 8, 2023. The quorum for 
the meeting is either two members or one third of the members of the Committee, whichever is greater with 
atleast two Independent Directors.

(i) Terms of Reference:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
2. Recommendation for the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors.
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval;
6. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue/ public 
offers (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.),the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to 
the Board to take steps in this matter;
7. Reviewing and monitoring with the management, independence and performance of statutory and internal 
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems, and effectiveness of the audit processes;
8. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit depart-
ment, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequen-
cy of internal audit; 
9. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;
10. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature, and reporting the 
matter to the Board;
11. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
12. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, share-
holders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

13. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism);
14. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole time Finance Director or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience &background, etc. 
of the candidate;
15. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
16. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
17. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
18. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management system;
19. Review of Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
20. Review of Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
21. Review of Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;
22. Review of Financial statement, in particular, investments made by the subsidiary company(s);
23. Review of appointment, removal and terms of reference of Chief Internal Auditor;
24. Recommend appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditors;
25. Any other role as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
ii Composition and Attendance at the meeting:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
Report.
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
d. Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit findings.
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.
g. Draft Auditors Report including qualifications, if any.
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The details of composition of Audit Committee, meetings held during the year and attendance of the members 
are as under:

Statutory Auditors, Internal Audit firm’s representatives, and other executives, as desired by the Committee, 
attend the meetings as invitees.

3. To formulate criteria for performance evaluation of independent Directors and the Board and
to carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;
4. To devise a policy on diversity of board of Directors;
5. To identify persons who are qualified to become Director in accordance with the criteria laid down and 
recommend to the Board, their appointment/removal;
6. To identify persons who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down 
and recommend to the Board, their appointment /removal;
7. To extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent Director, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of independent Directors;
8. Any other role as may be prescribed by law, fromtime to time.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, constituted under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, functions according to 
its terms of reference that define its composition, authority, responsibility and reporting functions which, inter 
alia, include the following:

CategoryName of DirectorSr. No.
No.of Meetings
attended out of

Four

Position in the
Audit Committee

02

01

03

Ms. Nirmal Jain

Mr. Ganesh Ray

Mrs. Sushma Jain

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Member

Chairman

Member

4

4

4

CategoryName of DirectorSr. No. No.of Meetings
attended 

Position in the
Audit Committee

02

01

03

Ms. Nirmal Jain

Mr. Ganesh Ray

Mrs. Sushma Jain

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Member

Chairman

Member

1

1

1

Invitees:

(i) Terms of Reference:

(ii) Composition and Attendance at the meeting:

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently consists of three non-executive Directors. The Com-
mittee meets as often as required. During the year the Committee met One time i.e. February 8, 2023. The 
quorum for the meeting is either two members or one third of the members of the Committee, whichever is 
greater including at least one independent Director in attendance.

The details of composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, meetings held during the year and 
attendance of the members are as under:

During the year, the Company didn’t receive any complaint/grievance from the investors. No complaint was 
pending as on March 31, 2023.

2. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director
Directors;
Key Managerial Personnel; and
Other employees of the Company

INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES/COMPLAINTS

During the year under review, no request had been received for share transfer/transmission. The Company had 
250 shareholders as on March 31, 2023.

TRANSFERS, TRANSMISSIONS ETC. APPROVED 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
THE DETAILS OF THE LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (AGM) OF THE
COMPANY ARE AS FOLLOWS
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Financial
Year

Date Location Whether Special
Resolution Passed

2021-2022
(36th AGM)

2020-2021
(35th AGM)

2019-2020
(34th AGM)

August 20, 2022

September 11, 2021

September 30, 2020

Time

11:00 A.M.

11:00 A.M.

11:00 A.M.
12:00 Noon

Maharaja Banquets, A-1/20B,
Paschim Vihar, Main Rohtak

Road, New Delhi-110063

Audio-Video Conference

Audio-Video Conference

No

Yes

Yes

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

(I) REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has no stock option plans for the Directors and hence, it does not form a part of the remunera-
tion package payable to any executive and/or non-executive Director. During the year under review, none of the 
Directors was paid any performance-linked incentive.

During the FY 22-23, the Company has paid remuneration amounting to Rs. 6,00,000 to Ms. Sonali Gupta (Direc-
tor & CFO) and remuneration amounting to Rs. 4,20,000 to Mr. Pranshu Poddar (Whole-time Director).

(II) REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
During the FY 2022-23, the Company has not paid any remuneration to the non-executive Directors.

(III) CRITERIA FOR MAKING PAYMENT TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
During the FY 2022-23, the Company has not paid any remuneration to the non-executive Directors.

In 2022-23, the Company did not advance any loans to any of the executive and/or non-executive Directors.

16. COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON AUDIT QUALIFICATION
There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
M/s Apoorv & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary has mentioned four Qualifications in the Secretarial 
Audit Report regarding the Non Compliance of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. The Qualifications are 
as follows;
1. Pursuant to provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory amendments or re-enactments thereof for the 
time being in force) Every individual 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 3 (5) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The 
board of directors or head(s) of the organization of every person required to handle unpublished price sensitive 
information shall ensure that a structured digital database is maintained containing the nature of unpublished 
price sensitive information and the names of such persons who have shared the information and also the 
names of such persons with whom information is shared under this regulation along with the Permanent 
Account Number or any other identifier authorized by law where Permanent Account Number is not available. 
Such database shall not be outsourced and shall be maintained internally with adequate internal controls and 
checks such as time stamping and audit trails to ensure non-tampering of the database
However, Company is not maintaining structured digital database.
Comments by Board: The Company is in the process of buying and maintaining software for structured digital 
database to timely capture unpublished price sensitive information.

However, Mr. Ganesh Ray and Mrs. Sushma Jain, independent directors in the company have not applied to the 
institute for inclusion of their name in the data bank, hence stand ineligible to be appointed as such in the 
office of independent directors in any company.
Comments by Board: The Registration in the Independent Director data bank is the responsibility of the Direc-
tors. The Company will be taking necessary steps to comply the above non- compliance, either through 
appointing new Independent Directors or through getting these Directors registered under Data bank and 
comply with the requirement of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.  

a. who has been appointed as an independent director in a company, on the date of commencement of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019, shall within a period 
of thirteen months from such commencement; or
b. who intends to get appointed as an independent director in a company after such commencement, shall 
before such appointment,  apply online to the institute for inclusion of his name in the data bank for a period 
of one year or five years or for his life-time, and from time to time take steps as specified in sub-rule (2), till he 
continues to hold the office of an independent director in any company:
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3. Pursuant to Regulation 17 1(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 board of directors shall have an optimum combination of executive and 
non-executive directors with at least one woman director and not less than fifty per cent. of the board of direc-
tors shall comprise of non-executive directors and Pursuant to Regulation 17 1(b) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 where the chairperson of 
the board of directors is a non-executive director, at least one-third of the board of directors shall comprise of 
independent directors and where the listed entity does not have a regular non-executive chairperson, at least 
half of the board of directors shall comprise of independent directors:
Provided that where the regular non-executive chairperson is a promoter of the listed entity or is related to any 
promoter or person occupying management positions at the level of board of director or at one level below the 
board of directors, at least half of the board of directors of the listed entity shall consist of independent direc-
tors.
However, Mr. Ganesh Ray and Mrs. Sushma Jain, are ineligible to be appointed as Independent Director in any 
company they are still holding position of Independent Director of the Company it is a violation of Regulation 
17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

Comments by Board: The Registration in the Independent Director data bank is the responsibility of the Direc-
tors. The Company will be taking necessary steps to comply the above non- compliance, either through 
appointing new Independent Directors or through getting these Directors registered under Data bank and 
comply with the requirement of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. 

4. Company has not paid listing fees to the exchange

Your Directors have adopted a Risk Management Policy for the Company. The Audit Committee and the Board 
of Directors of the Company review the risks, if any involved in the Company from time to time and take appro-
priate measures to minimize the same. The Audit Committee ensures that the Policy for Risk Management is 
adopted across the Company in an inclusive manner.

 Comments by Board: The Company will pay pending listing fees of MSEI soon.

17. RISK MANGEMENT POLICY

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future. During the financial year under review, neither any applica-
tion is made by the Company, nor any proceeding is pending against the Company under Insolvency and Bank-
ruptcy Code, 2016. 

18. ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OF COURTS, IF ANY

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The performance of the 
Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as the 
board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. The 
performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee mem-
bers on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.
The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017. In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of 
non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into 
account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual direc-
tors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee 
meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and 
inputs in meetings, etc. At the board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors and 
meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its Committees, and 
individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the 
entire Board, excluding the independent director being evaluated

20. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future. During the financial year under review, neither any applica-
tion is made by the Company, nor any proceeding is pending against the Company under Insolvency and Bank-
ruptcy Code, 2016. 

19. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF THE ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
      WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The criteria of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable on the Company. Thus, there is no requirement to constitute a CSR committee, formulate the policy 
and spent amount on Corporate Social Responsibility.

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy and overseas through the Committee, 
the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also provided 
adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns. The Com-
pany has also provided direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee on reporting issues concerning 
the interests of co- employees and the Company. The Whistle Blower policy as approved by the Board has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. www.be-swasth.in

22. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits covered within the meaning of 
Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further there 
are no deposits unclaimed or pending in the Books of the Company.

23. FIXED DEPOSIT

The Company doesn’t have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate company.
25. SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is presented in a 
separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

26. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Audit & Nomination Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2023 comprises of Mr. Ganesh Ray as Chair-
man, Ms. Nirmal Jain and Mrs. Sushma Jain as members.
Further, all the recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.

28. DISCLOSURE ON AUDIT & NOMINATION REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In its endeavour to improve investor services, your Company has taken the following initiatives:
29. INVESTOR SERVICES

The Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company in accordance with SEBI (Listing Regulations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. However, the Company is committed to maintaining the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance and adhering to the corporate governance requirements.

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board members have affirmed that compliance with all the applicable Secretarial Standard i.e SS-1 and 
SS-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARD

Company is not required to maintain the cost records and accounts as specified under section 148 of Compa-
nies Act, 2013 as it not applicable on the Company.

32. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 148 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has less than 10 employees as on March 31, 2023 and the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work-
place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is not applicable. 
However, the Company has a prevention of sexual harassment policy in place. The Directors further state that 
during the year under review, there was no case filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work-
place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

27. SEXUAL HARRASMENT POLICY

Since the Company do not involve in any manufacturing or processing activities, the particulars as required 
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014 
regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable. Further there was no Foreign 
Exchange earnings and outgo during the Financial Year 2022-2023. The Details of the above is enclosed as 
Annexure -1.

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
       EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A certificate has been received from Apoorv & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company had been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 

33. CERTIFICATION FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE FOR NON-
      DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

An Investors and information Section on the website of the Company www.be-swasth.in has been created.
There is a dedicated e-mail id cs@be-swasth.com for sending communications to the Company Secretary.
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as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such other statutory/ regulatory authority. The same has been enclosed as “Annexure -5”.

The statements contained in the Board’s Report and Management Discussion and Analysis contain certain 
statements relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the meaning of applicable securi-
ties, laws and regulations.
Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regime, other statues, 
market forces and other associated and incidental factors may however lead to variation in actual results.

34. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Your Directors thank the Shareholders, Banks/other Lenders, Customers, Vendors and other business associ-
ates for the confidence reposed in the Company and its management and look forward to their continued 
support. The Board places on record its appreciation for the dedication and commitment of the employees at 
all levels, which has continued to be our major strength. We look forward to their continued support in the 
future.

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE-1

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014.

Since, during the Financial Year 2022-23 the Company was not involved in any manufacturing or processing 
activities, the particulars as per the Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of 
energy is not applicable.

Since, during the Financial Year 2022-23 the Company was not involved in any manufacturing or processing 
activities, the particulars as per the Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding technology 
absorption are not applicable.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
There was no Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo during the year under review.

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION:

OBJECTIVE:

Pursuant to Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions 2015, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors of every listed Company shall constitute the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the 
Committee to be known as Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three of more non-executive 
Directors out of which not less than one half are independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an 
Independent Director. However, the Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be 
appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such committee.

The Key objective of the Committee would be:

DEFINITION:

INTERPRETATION:

1. APPOINTMENT CRITERIA AND QUALIFICATIONS:

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT

To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

a.

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person 
for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his/her 
appointment.

a.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is considered 
for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 
possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

b.

Board means Board of Directors of the Company.a.

Company means “Be Swasth Healthcare Limited”b.

Independent Director means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.c.
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means
i. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager,
ii. Company Secretary,
iii. Whole‐time Director,
iv. Chief Financial Officer and
v. Such other officer as may be prescribed.

d.

Policy or This Policy means ʺNomination and Remuneration Policy.ʺf.

Remuneration means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him 
and includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

g.

Senior Management means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of management one level below the executive 
Directors, including all the functional heads.

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the Companies 
Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and/or any other SEBI Regulations(s) as amended from time to time.

h.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall mean a Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, 
constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agree-
ment.

e.

To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for 
further evaluation.

b.

To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

c.
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explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of 
appointment beyond seventy years.

2. TERM/ TENURE:
Managing Director/Whole‐time Director:
The Company shall appoint or re‐appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Execu-
tive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re‐appointment shall be made earlier than one 
year before the expiry of term.

a.

i.

3. EVALUATION:
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

4. REMOVAL:
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any applicable Act, rules and regulations 
there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a 
Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules 
and regulations.

5. RETIREMENT:

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/ SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

1. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING/WHOLE TIME/ EXECUTIVE/ MANAGING DIRECTOR, KMP 
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

2. REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act 
and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior 
Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement 
age, for the benefit of the Company.

The Remuneration/ Compensation / Commission etc. to be paid to Director/ Managing Director etc. shall be 
governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for 
the time being in force.

The Non‐Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration/ compensation commission as per the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided 
under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems 
necessary.

ii. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may issue the guidelines, procedures formats, reporting mech-
anism and manual in supplement and better implementation to this Policy. If it thinks necessary.

Managing Director/Whole‐time Director:
An Independent Director shall hold officer for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company 
and will be eligible for re‐appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of 
such appointment in the Board’s Report.
No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years 
each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to 
become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not during the said period of 
three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Board on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three 
listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole‐time Director of a listed 
company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

b.
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The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole Time Director who has 
attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended 
beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the 

c.



SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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the change in the policy.



ANNEXURE-3

FORM NO. AOC 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm length transac-

tions under third proviso is given below:

1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT

2. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT

DETAILSPARTICULARSSr. No.

02

01

04

05

06

07

08

03

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first proviso 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Name of
related Party

Nature of
Relationship

Nature of
Transaction

Duration
of Contract

Date of
Approval

Amount
(Rs. In lacs)

NIL

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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Duration of the contracts/arrangements /transaction

to section 188

ARM'S LENGTH BASIS



ANNEXURE-4

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED
487/63, National Market, Peeragarhi sunder Vihar
New Delhi-110087

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to 
good corporate practices by Be Swasth Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as Ujala Commercials Limited) CIN: 
L93000DL1985PLC021397 (“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion there-
on.

Based on my verification of Be Swasth Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as Ujala Commercials Limited) CIN: 
L93000DL1985PLC021397 (“the Company”) books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and autho-
rized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, complied with the statutory provi-
sions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31 st March 2023 according to the provisions of:

1.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;i.
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;ii.
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;iii.
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: Not applicable to 
the extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings as there were no reportable 
events during the financial year under review.

iv.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

v.

Labour Laws: As per information received by the Company none of the Labour Laws applicable on the Compa-
ny.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
The SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges

1.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015;a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;b.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

c.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2021;d.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; client (not applicable to the company during the Audit 
period);

e.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period)

f.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period)

g.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015

h.

ii.
iii. During the period under review and as per explanations and clarifications given to me and the representations 

made by the Management, the company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula-
tions, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except the following observations:
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who intends to get appointed as an independent director in a company after such commencement, shall before 
such appointment, apply online to the institute for inclusion of his name in the data bank for a period of one 
year or five years or for his life-time, and from time to time take steps as specified in sub-rule (2), till he continues 
to hold the office of an independent director in any company:
However, Mr. Ganesh Ray and Mrs. Sushma Jain, independent directors in the company have not applied to the 
institute for inclusion of their name in the data bank, hence stand ineligible to be appointed as such in the office 
of independent directors of the company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 3 (5) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The 
board of directors or head(s) of the organization of every person required to handle unpublished price sensitive 
information shall ensure that a structured digital database is maintained containing the nature of unpublished 
price sensitive information and the names of such persons who have shared the information and also the 
names of such persons with whom information is shared under this regulation along with the Permanent 
Account Number or any other identifier authorized by law where Permanent Account Number is not available. 
Such database shall not be outsourced and shall be maintained internally with adequate internal controls and 
checks such as time stamping and audit trails to ensure non-tampering of the database.

However, Company has not maintained structured digital database during the audit period

b.

2.

Pursuant to Regulation 17 1(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 board of directors shall have an optimum combination of executive and 
non-executive directors with at least one woman director and not less than fifty per cent. of the board of direc-
tors shall comprise of non-executive directors and Pursuant to Regulation 17 1(b) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 where the chairperson of 
the board of directors is a non-executive director, at least one-third of the board of directors shall comprise of
independent directors and where the listed entity does not have a regular non-executive chairperson, at least 
half of the board of directors shall comprise of independent directors:

Provided that where the regular non-executive chairperson is a promoter of the listed entity or is related to any 
promoter or person occupying management positions at the level of board of director or at one level below the 
board of directors, at least half of the board of directors of the listed entity shall consist of independent directors.

However, Mr. Ganesh Ray and Mrs. Sushma Jain, are ineligible to be appointed as Independent Director in the 
company they are still holding position of Independent Director in the Company it is a violation of Regulation 17 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors of the Company is not constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors because of ineligible Independent Directors. The 
Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further infor-
mation and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting 

3.

Company has not paid listing fees to the exchange
I further report that:

Decisions were passed with unanimous majority and recorded as part of the minutes.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure-A’ and forms an integral 
part of this report.

I further report that as per explanation given to me and the representations made by the Management and 
relied upon by me there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

a. 

b. 

4.

SD/-
CS Apoorv Srivastava
Proprietor
M. No.: F12734, C.P. No.: 21063
Unique Code Number S2018UP633000
Peer Review Certificate No:4064/2023
UDIN: F012734E000855191

For Apoorv & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE-A

To,
The Members
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED
487/63, National Market, Peeragarhi sunder Vihar
New Delhi-110087

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

1.

I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the com-
pany.

3.

Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.

4.

The Compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

5.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company not of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

6.

SD/-
CS Apoorv Srivastava
Practicing Company Secretary
M. No.: F12734, C.P. No.: 21063
Unique Code Number S2018UP633000
Peer Review Certificate No:4064/2023
UDIN: F012734E000855191

For Apoorv & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE-5

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Part C Clause (10) (i) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,
The Members
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED
487/63, National Market, Peeragarhi sunder Vihar
New Delhi-110087

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Be 
Swasth Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as Ujala Commercials Limited) having CIN: L93000DL1985PLC021397 
and having registered office at 487/63, National Market, Peeragarhi, New Delhi 110087 (hereinafter referred to as
‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (List-
ing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identi-
fication Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished 
to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as 
stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sr.No.

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

DIN

00036894

00036929

00463635

08545336

09203812

09277676

Date of Appointment in Company

05/03/1999

10/05/2006

10/02/2016

26/08/2019

15/06/2021

11/08/2021

Name of Director

Virender Kumar Jain

Nirmal Jain

Ganesh Ray

Sushma Jain

Pranshu Poddar

Sonali Gupta

SD/-
CS Apoorv Srivastava
Practicing Company Secretary
M. No.: F12734, C.P. No.: 21063
Unique Code Number S2018UP633000
Peer Review Certificate No:4064/2023
UDIN: F012734E000855191

For Apoorv & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of The Compa-
nies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Com-
pany and Directors are furnished here under:

Particulars

As per note 1*

7

The remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company.

Requirement

The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager,
if any, in the financial year.

The number of permanent employees on
the rolls of Company.

Sonali Gupta

*NOTE 1.

NAMES OF EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW:

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Compa-
ny Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year ending on March 31, 2023 is as follow:

No Remuneration or Sitting Fees was being paid to any Non Executive Director during the Year 2022-23.

*Resigned w.e.f. 11.11.2022

Information as per Rule 5(2) of Chapter XIII of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014.
During the financial year 2022-23, no employee received the remuneration aggregating to Rs. 60 lakhs p.a.

Sr.N.

01.

02.

03.

Designation As on
31.03.2022

AS ON
31.03.2023

Ratio of remun-
eration to median
remuneration of

employees

% increase in
salary for year

ending on
31.03.2023

Company Secretary

Whole Time Director

Director & CFO

42000 PM

35000 PM

50000 PM

42000 PM

35000 PM

50000 PM

0.99:1

0.83:1

1.18:1

-

-

-

Name of Director

Mr. Poorti Goel*

Mr. Pranshu Poddar

Ms. Sonali Gupta

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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S.NO. Name of Employee Designation

01

02

03

04

05

06

Mr. Poorti Goel*

Mr. Pranshu Poddar

Ms. Sonali Gupta

Mr. Yogesh

Dr pallavi 

Dr srihitha

07 Dr prerna

Company Secretary

Whole Time Director

Director & CFO

 Employee

 Employee

 Employee

 Employee

Remuneration

Drawn Rs. 3,09,400

Drawn Rs. 4,20,000

Drawn Rs. 6,00,000

Drawn Rs. 163200

Drawn Rs. 120000

Drawn Rs. 120000

Drawn Rs. 120000



I, undersigned, in my capacities as Director & Chief financial officer of Be Swasth Healthcare Limited (Formerly 
known as “Ujala Commercials Limited”) (“the Company”), to the best of knowledge and belief certify that:

(a) I have reviewed audited quarterly financial results for the quarter and year ended March 31 st , 2023 and that to 
the best of our knowledge and belief I state that:

(b) There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 
quarter and year ended March 31 st , 2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of 
conduct.

(c) I hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have confirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

(e) Based on our recent evaluation, i have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

(d) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that i have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and i 
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 
controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain state-
ments that might be misleading;

i.

That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the quarter;i.
That there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the quarter and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial results; and

ii.

That no instances of significant fraud of which i have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

iii.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

ii.

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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Be Swasth Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as Ujala Commercials Limited) is into business of Telehealth 
consultation. The Company established a healthcare platform (Tele Health) due to growing demand of healthcare 
solution. Our platform offers a complete healthcare solution for patient that can be availed from the comfort of 
anywhere.

Our goal is to make online healthcare consultation affordable for everyone and to make doctors available even in 
the rural areas. We charge nominal prices for best consultation services by our qualified team of doctors which is 
main attraction of our Company.

The Company has Developed a Mobile Based Application with the name of “Be-Swasth” which is available on 
Android Platform.

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The economic condition of our country and world as a whole has been better post pandemic. Our Company is 
working continuously to make our platform better to reach maximum number of people. We feel that the oppor-
tunities will soon arise in the markets upon the corrective policies by the government and better fiscal manage-
ment.

2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Company is into single reportable segment only.
3. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company does not foresee any major threat to the growth prospective. Since the company is engaged in 
Healthcare sector, there is huge scope of growth in the industry.

4. OUTLOOK

The Company works continuously towards monitoring changes in market so that it can continue on the path of 
sustainable change. The Company has constituted a committee of Directors to identify, monitor and minimize the 
risk and also to identify the business opportunities. The growth of your Company&#39;s portfolio is linked to the 
overall economic growth. Primary risk to the business will be on account of adverse changes to the economy.

5. RISK & CONCERNS

The Company is availing the services of independent professionals to carry out the internal audit and ensure that 
recording and reporting of all transactions is adequate and proper. The necessary measures are taken to update 
the internal control system. The system also ensures that all the transactions are appropriately authorised, record-
ed and reported. All the measures are regularly reviewed by the management and necessary improvements are 
done.

6. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The brief on Financial Performance of the Company is already provided in the Boards Report of the Company.
7. DISCUSSIONS ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company believes that its people are a key differentiator, especially in knowledge driven, competitive and 
global business environment. Adapting work culture to suit the dynamic balancing of people requirements and 
employee needs is an ongoing process. Our people are the company&#39;s greatest assets. Your company focuses 
on increasing the overall productivity per employee in the challenging market conditions. Men are the only active 
agent and acts as a catalyst in effective utilization of all other M&#39;s (Material, Machine and Money). The Board 
of Directors of your company would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the efforts and contribu-
tion made by all the employees of the Company in the challenging environment. Your Directors take this opportu-
nity to thank all employees for rendering impeccable services to every constituent of Company, customers and 
shareholders. The Company has a well-defined appraisal system to assess and reward the employees appropriate-
ly and also to gauge the potentials of the individuals.

8. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describe the Company objectives, estimates 
and expectations, which may be a forward looking statement within the meaning of applicable laws, rules and 
regulations. The actual results may differ from those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic condi-
tions and policies of the Government. Important factors that could make a difference to your 

9. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
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Company operations include competitive actions, disruptions caused by pandemic and natural calamities, chang-
es in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments in India and other incidental factors.

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 24, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

OPINION

BASIS FOR OPINION

OTHER INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Be Swasth Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as “Ujala 
Commercials Limited”) (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone 
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory informa-
tion (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit and other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical require-
ments that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these require-
ments and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other informa-
tion comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infor-
mation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa-
tion, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these IND ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards(IND AS) specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropri-
ate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, imple-
mentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assess-
ing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

The balances of trade receivables and other assets are subject to confirmation from third party.
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the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors is also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepti-
cism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and access the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten-
tional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

i.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone finan-
cial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

ii.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

ii.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

iv.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

v.

a.

1.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of user taken on basis of these standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguard

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement 
of change in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

d.In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
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With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial state-
ments of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.

f.

The Company has no any pending litigations on its financial statements.i.

No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.v.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

ii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iii.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Benefi-
ciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or other-
wise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identi-
fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the UltimateBeneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circum-
stances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis- statement.

iv.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Com-
panies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M.No-082646

UDIN: 23082646BGTTJW1370
Peer Review Certificate No. 014266

For PVR-N & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 004062N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th May 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘A’

THE ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF OUR REPORT ON “OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS”.
We report that:

a. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of its fixed assets.

b. As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management.

1.

As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable 
intervals. No material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as com-
pared to book records.

2.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of 
account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Consequently, the provisions of clauses iii (a), (b) and (c)of the order are not applicable to the Company.

3.

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been complied with.

4.

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

5.

As per information  explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has not been specified 
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.

i. According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor 
Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, , Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, 
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable, have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has no outstanding dues as on March 31, 2023.

7.

8.

ii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in respect of service 
tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess whichever applicable, which have not been
deposited on account of any disputes.

 According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in respect of service tax, 
sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess whichever applicable, which have not been
deposited on account of any disputes.

9. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as 
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year.

10. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the management, the company has 
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or taken 
any term loan during the year.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the company or any fraud 
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

12.According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that managerial remuneration has been 
paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Companies Act.

13.The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause xii of the order is not applicable to the company.

14.According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in com-
pliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed 
in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

15.The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convert-
ible debentures during the year under review.

16.The balances of debtors and creditors are subject to confirmations.

17. The company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
18.There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order 

is not applicable.
19.The company was registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However, the registra-

tion under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 has been cancelled with effect from 02 nd 
August 2018.
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Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the company. Accordingly, clauses 
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

20.

The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause is not applicable.22.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assump-
tions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that 
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili-
ties falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as 
and when they fall due.

21.

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M.No-082646

UDIN: 23082646BGTTJW1370
Peer Review Certificate No. 014266

For PVR-N & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 004062N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th May 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘B’

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATE-
MENTS OF BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 
OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Be Swasth Healthcare Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential com-
ponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Compa-
nies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

ing based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finan-
cial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Insti-
tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING

 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendi-
tures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company&#39;s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial report-
ing, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effec-
tiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judg-
ment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system  over financial reporting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 PAGE NO. 48

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial report-

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial



OPINION

occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consid-
ering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M.No-082646

UDIN: 23082646BGTTJW1370
Peer Review Certificate No. 014266

For PVR-N & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 004062N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th May 2023
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CIN: L93000DL1985PLC021397
Regd. Office: A-6/130B,
1st Floor, Paschim Vihar,
New Delhi-110063
Ph. No: 011-49879687 | Email Id: cs@be-swasth.com

BE-SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
ASSETS

ASSETS

Equity

Current assets

Non-current assets
2

3
4

5

6

7
8

9

10

11,843

1,39,000
1,613

12,580

5,596

1,70,632

1,11,900
(19,500)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,681

68,441
1,110

-
-

1,70,632

12,438

1,30,000
1,896

12,912

4,992

1,62,238

1,11,900
(15,370)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,680

55,532
2,495

-
-

1,62,237

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Financial Assets

(b) Other Current Assets

(i) Loans
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other Bank Balances
(iv) Trade Receivables
(v) Inventories

(i) Loans
(ii) Trade Payables
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(vi) Other Financial Assets

(c) Current Tax Assets

(a) (i) Equity Share Capital

(a) Financial Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Current Tax Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities
(i) Loans

(b) Other Equity

Liabilities

Non-Current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total Assets

(b) Financial Assets

(c) Other Non Current Assets
(d) Deferred  Tax Assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Other Financial Assets

In terms of our report attached. 

Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

1

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M. No.  082646
FRN. 004062N 

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

For PVR-N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.  004062N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2023
UDIN:- 23082646BGTTJW1370

(In 00's)
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BE-SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

In terms of our report attached. 

Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

1

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M. No.  082646
FRN. 004062N 

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

For PVR-N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.  004062N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2023
UDIN:- 23082646BGTTJW1370

PARTICULARS

INCOME
Revenue From Operations

Finance costs

Other Income
Total Income

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods,
Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other expenses
Total Expenses

Other Comprehensive Income 
A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit/(loss) for the period

B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
B) (ii) Income tax relating to items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss

(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Earnings per equity share:

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans, net of tax

A) (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)

EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock in Trade

11

12
13

2
14

NOTE

25,108
-

25,108

 20,939 
35

595
6,669
28,237

 (3,130)

(4,130)

-
-

-

-

-

(1,001)

(4,130)

(0.00)
-

31.03.2023

9,023
-

9,023

21,397
1

759
5,757
27,914

 (18,891)

(24,006)

-
-

-

-

-

(5,116)

(24,006)

(0.02)
-

31.03.2022

(In 00's)
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BE-SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023

In terms of our report attached. 

Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

1

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M. No.  082646
FRN. 004062N 

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

For PVR-N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.  004062N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2023
UDIN:- 23082646BGTTJW1370

(In 00's)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTVITIES ( C )

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Opening Balance of Cash and 
Cash Equivalents

Closing Balance of Cash and
Cash Equivalents

NET INCREASE/DECREASE in Cash and 
Cash Equivalent

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation
Finance Cost

Adjustment for :-
(Increase)/decrease in Loans & Advances

Fixed Asset Purchase

Repayment of Loan

Finance Cost

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

(Increase)/decrease in Sundry Debtors
Increase/(decrease) in Current Liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in Other Current Assets
(Increase)/decrease in Other Non Current Assets
Cash Generated from Operation
Less: Direct Tax

-

-

(282)

1,896

282

(3,130)

595
35

(25,000)

(9,000)

-

-

(35)

(35)

(247)

333
11,524
(604)

-
2,253

-

-

(4,562)

575

1,321

(1,896)

(575)

(18,891)

759
1

(18,131)

(3,000)

(4,562)

-

(1)

(1)

5,138

-
26,269
(604)

-
23,296

-
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*The Company has elected to measure all of its property plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying 
value as deemed cost at the transition date.

If Yes,the company shall disclose as to whether the revaluation is based on thevaluation by a registered valuer as 
defined under rule 2 of the Companies (RegisteredValuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023
(Amount in hundred's unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

NOTE 3- LOANS

(In hundred's)

PARTICULARS

Cost:

Balance as at 31st March 2021

Additions during the year

Deletions during the year

Balance as at 31st March 2022

Additions during the year

Deletions during the year

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Depreciation:

Balance as at 31st March 2021

Depreciation for the year

Disposals

Balance as at 31st March 2022

Depreciation for the year

Disposals

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Net Block:

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Balance as at 31st March 2022

Balance as at 31st March 2021

CAR

 40,175 

-

-

40,175

-

-

40,175

37,639

735

-

38,374

522

-

38,896

1,278

1,800

2,535

Medical Kit

-

110

-

110

-

-

110

-

10

-

10

18

-

28

81

99

-

Mobile

-

315

-

315

-

-

315

-

13

-

13

55

-

68

247

302

-

Mobile

46,273

4,562

-

50,836

-

-

50,836

37,639

759

-

38,896

595

-

38,896

11,843

12,438

8,634

Be-swasth
Application

 6,099

4,138

-

10,236

-

-

10,236

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,236

10,236

6,099

Revaluation Details

Current Year

Whether the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment No

Previous Year

Whether the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment No

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Non Current

Security Deposits

Other Loans and Advances

Total

-

1,39,000.00

1,39,000.00

-

1,39,000.00

1,39,000.00

At Amortised Cost
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NOTE 4- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTE 5 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

CURRENT YEAR

TRADE RECEIVABLE AGEING SCHEDULE

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Cash in Hand

Hdfc Bank

Laxmi vilas Bank

Total

 596.19

 1,017.18  1,117.18

-

 1,613.37

 675.15

 103.40

 1,895.72

Bank Balances

A) FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE STATEMENT OF  CASH FLOW, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF THE FOLLOWING:

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Cash in Hand

Hdfc Bank

Laxmi vilas Bank

Total

603.38

 1,017.18  1,117.18

-

1,620.56

 675.15

 103.40

 1,895.72

Bank Balances

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Unsecured Considered Good

Total 12,580 12,912

12,579.62 12,912.12

PARTICULARS

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not Due
"Less

than 6
months"

"6
months
- 1 year"

"1-2
years"

"2-3
years"

"More
than

3 years"
Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

332.5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12247.12

-

-

-

12579.62

-

-

-

PREVIOUS YEAR

TRADE RECEIVABLE AGEING SCHEDULE
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PARTICULARS

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not Due
"Less

than 6
months"

"6
months
- 1 year"

"1-2
years"

"2-3
years"

"More
than

3 years"
Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12912.12

-

-

-

12912.12

-

-

-

NOTE 6 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

NOTE 7 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(B) TERMS AND RIGHTS ATTACHED TO EQUITY SHARES
EQUITY SHARES

(A) RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Gst receivable

Mat Credit

Total

2,149.58

1,727.09

1,718.83

5,595.50

1,545.69

1,727.09

1,718.83

4,991.61

Income Tax Refund

Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of  Re.10/- each

As at 31 March 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at 31 March 2023

50,00,000.00

-

-

50,00,000.00

50,00,000.00

50,00,000.00

-

-

50,00,000.00

50,00,000.00

PARTICULARS NUMBER AMOUNT

(In hundred's)

Issued,  Subscribed &  Fully Paid up
Equity Shares of  Re.10/- each

As at 31 March 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at 31 March 2023

11,19,000.00

-

-

11,19,000.00

11,19,000.00

11,19,000.00

-

-

11,19,000.00

11,19,000.00

PARTICULARS NUMBER AMOUNT

(In hundred's)

* The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of  Re. 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity 
Share is entitled to one vote per share.

** In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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(C) DISCLOSURE OF SHARES IN THE COMPANY HELD BY EACH SHAREHOLDER
HOLDING MORE THAN 5%

(D ) THERE ARE NO BONUS ISSUE AND BUY BACK OF EQUITY SHARES DURING THE
PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE REPORTING DATE.

(E) RECONCILIATION OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING AT THE BEGINNING
AND AT THE END OF THE YEAR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE - 8
(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(B) OTHER EQUITY

AS AT 31.03.2023 AS AT 31.03.2022

No. of 
Shares held

% of
Holding

No. of 
Shares held

Adhunik Technology Private Limited

Basant Indian Limited

Mascon Global Limited

Anubhav Mercantile Pvivate Limited

Anjali Holdings Private Limited

1,70,000

1,68,055

1,52,400

1,15,200

68,075

1519.21%

1501.83%

13.62%

10.29%

6.08%

1,70,000

1,68,055

1,52,400

1,15,200

68,075

% of
Holding

1519.21%

1501.83%

13.62%

10.29%

6.08%

PARTICULARS

AS AT 31.03.2023 

 EQUITY SHARES

AS AT 31.03.2022

No. of 
Shares held

% of
Holding

No. of 
Shares held

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares Issued during the year 

Shares bought back during the year

Shares converted during the year(from  Rs. 10/- to Rs.1/- each)

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

 11,19,000

-

-

-

 11,19,000

11,19,000

-

-

-

11,19,000

11,19,000

-

-

-

11,19,000

% of
Holding

11,19,000

-

-

-

11,19,000

PARTICULARS

(In hundred's)

(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Issued,  Subscribed &  Fully Paid up
(Equity Shares of  Rs.10/- each)

At 1st April 2021

Changes in equity share capital

At 31st March 2022

Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2023

11,19,000.00

-

-

11,19,000.00

11,19,000.00

11,19,000.00

-

-

11,19,000.00

11,19,000.00

PARTICULARS NUMBER AMOUNT

(In hundred's)
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As at 1 April 2021

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Transferred from other reserve

Total comprehensive income

Any changes

Reserve created during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income

Any changes

(+)Reversal of Provision of Tax

(+)Prior Period Adjustment

As at 31 March 2023

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,636.56

(24,006.40)

-

(15,369.84)

-

-

(15,369.84)

(4,130.09)

(19,499.94)

-

-

-

(19,499.94)

8,636.56

(24,006.40)

-

(15,369.84)

-

-

(15,369.84)

(4,130.09)

(19,499.94)

-

-

-

(19,499.94)

PARTICULARS "Securities Premium 
Reserve"

"Retained Earnings"
AMOUNT

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(In hundred's)

NOTE 9 - LOANS

NOTE 10. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITY

BREAK UP OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

NON CURRENT LIABILITY

Secured

Total - -

- -

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:

Loans

Trade payables

Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note 10) 1,110.25

68,440.74

-

949.56

55,531.68

-

(a) Provision for Employee Benefits

Salary & Reimbursements

(b) Others

TDS Payable

Telephone expenses Payable

Audit Fees Payable

Total

785.00

25.25

300.00

1,110.25

1,928.00

67.25

500.00

2,495.25

PARTICULARS 31-MAR-23 31-MAR-22
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31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Current

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Non Current

Loans

Total Financial Liabilities 69,550.99

-

69,550.99

69,550.99

31-MAR-23

56,481.24

-

56,481.24

56,481.24

CURRENT YEAR
TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

CURRENT YEAR
TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

"Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment"

"Less than 1
year"

"1-2
years"

"2-3
years"

(i)MSME

(ii)Others

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

95.2

12808.46

0

0

0

25888.97

0

0

208.85

19321.09

0

0

More than
3 years

224.2

9893.97

0

0

PARTICULARS
Total

528.25

67912.49

0

0

"Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment"

"Less than 1
year"

"1-2
years"

"2-3
years"

(i)MSME

(ii)Others

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

0

25888.97

0

0

255.68

16144.7

0

0

171.97

0

0

0

More than
3 years

0

13070.36

0

0

PARTICULARS
Total

427.65

55104.03

0

0

NOTE 11. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Sale of services

Other income

Grant

Total 25,107.53

16,100.00

9,000.00

7.53

9,023.27

-

9,000.00

23.26

(In hundred's)

NOTE 12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

NOTE 13. FINANCE COST

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Salary

Staff welfare

Total 20,938.52

-

20,938.52

21,397.18

63.00

21,334.18

(In hundred's)
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31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Bank Charges

Total 35.14

35.14

1.24

1.24

(In hundred's)

NOTE 14. OTHER EXPENSES

NOTE NUMBER: 15 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

(1) Details of Benami Property held

(2) borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

(3) Wilful Defaulter – Not Applicable

(4) Relationship with Struck off Companies – Not Applicable

(5) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies – Not Applicable

Current Year - There are no properties which are not in the name of company.

Company has not taken any loans from banks or financial institution against the security of current assets.
whether quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agree-
ment with the books of accounts. – Not Applicable

Previous Year - There are no properties which are not in the name of company.

31-MAR-23PARTICULARS 31-MAR-22

Audit Fees

Advertisment

AGM Expense

ROC Exp.

Legal & Professional Charges

Listing Fees

Misc. Office Exp.

Office Rent

Printing & Stationary

Interest on TDS

Website Maintenance Charges

Telephone Exp.

Donation Paid

Office Expenses

Car Repair & Maintenance charges

Conveyance Expense

Short & Excess

Interest expense

Server

Diwali expense

Business Promotion

Digital marketing

Freight

Registration fees

Total

350.00

946.37

123.42

49.00

1,110.07

550.00

-

480.00

63.45

-

55.89

52.75

110.00

198.75

-

990.62

0.01

-

113.06

-

473.85

900.00

1.50

100.14

6,668.88

250.00

1,594.90

250.00

189.00

1,028.00

550.00

83.70

480.00

175.00

0.40

8.21

183.05

110.00

62.97

-

357.45

-

23.44

34.92

21.00

354.86

-

-

-

5,756.90

Where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period, details and 
reasons thereof – Not Applicable
(6) Compliance with number of layers of companies – Not Applicable
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(7) Ratios: The reasons for the variances in the ratios (more than 25%) were not made to us by the management.

(8) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements - Not Applicable

(9) Undisclosed Income - The Company has accounted all the income in books of accounts.

(10) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) - Not Applicable
(11) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency - Not Applicable

PARTICULARS

As on
01.04.2022

Additions
for less than

182 days

Additions
for more than

182 days

Deduction
during the

year

Depreciation
Rate

Depreciation
charged

during the year

As on
31.03.2023

NUMERATOR DENOMINATOR
"AS ON

MARCH 31,
 2023"

"AS ON
MARCH 31,

 2022"

%
CHNAGE

REASONS FOR
VARIANCE

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.28 2.62 (13.02)

 (82.03)

Due to Increase in Assets
and decrease in liabilities.

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total debt Shareholder's equity Not Applicable Not Applicable NA

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt service Debt service Not Applicable Not Applicable NA

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit after taxes Shareholder's equity -0.04 -0.25 Due to increase in Net loss.

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Revenue Average inventory 0 0 NA

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average trade receivable 2.00 0.70 185.61 Due to increase in Net loss.

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Purchase Average trade payables 0 0 NA

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue -0.16 -2.09
Due to increase in revenue
and increase in net profit.

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working capital 0.28 0.10  186.16

 (92.14)

(j) Return on Capital employed Earning before interest & taxes Capital Employed -0.03 -0.18 Due to increase in Net loss. (82.92)

(k) Return on investment

PARTICULARS

Tangible Assets

Plant and Machinery

Furniture and Fitting

Motor Car

Total

17.09

196.37

8,607.28

8,820.74

2.56

19.64

1,291.09

1,313.29

14.53

176.73

7,316.18

7,507.44

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15%

10%

15%

Income from investment Cost of Investment Not Applicable Not Applicable

Due to increase in revenue
and increase in assets and

decrease in liabilities.

NOTE NO. 16 FIXED ASSETS
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NOTE NO. 01

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Be Swasth Healthcare Limited was incorporated on 02nd July 1985 registered under the Companies Act, 
1956. The registered office of the company is situated at A-6/130B, 1st Floor Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110063. 
The principal place of business is in India. 

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 
cost convention except for certain financial instruments (including derivative instruments) and defined 
benefit plans which have been measured at fair value. The accounting policies are consistently applied by 
the Company to all the period mentioned in the financial statements.

C. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the financial 
statements is made relying on these estimates.

D. REVENUE RECOGNITION

INCOME FROM SERVICES:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or 
duties collected on behalf of the government.

Service revenue is recognized on completion of provision of services which in general coincides with invoic-
ing to customers. Revenue, net of discount, is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards to 
the customer and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding realization of consideration.

INTEREST INCOME:
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest rate (EIR) method.  EIR is the rate 
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to 
the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company 
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but 
does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement 
of profit and loss.

Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognized when services are rendered and 
related costs are incurred. Revenues from time bound fixed price contracts, are recognized over the life of 
the contract using the percentage of completion method, with contract costs determining the degree of 
completion. Foreseeable losses on such contracts are recognized when probable.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluat-
ed by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors that 
the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.

The financial statements (“Financial Statements”) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies’ (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 
2015, as amended from time to time.

The Company was registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non- Banking Financial Institution (NBFC), but 
as on 02nd August 2018, the Certificate of Registration as NBFC has been surrendered by the Company to 
RBI. Therefore, the Company ceases to be an NBFC since 02nd August 2018. . In the Year 2020 the Company 
has amended its object clause to diversify the business into Tele Health services
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Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year

Weighted Number of Equity Shares

Nominal Value per Share

Earnings Per Share (Basic)

(4130)

1119000

10

(0.00)

(24006)

1119000

10

(0.02)

E. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties 
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the Written down Value method.

Amortization is recognized on a Written down Value basis over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided as per the provisions of Part B of Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013 based on useful life and residual value notified for accounting purposes by Electricity Regulatory 
Authorities.
The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

G. TAXATION

Cash and Cash Equivalents in Balance Sheet comprises of cash at bank and hand and short-term deposits 
with original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive 
income.
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s 
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period.

H. EARNINGS PER SHARE

I. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Amount in 00’s.)

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted average 
number of equities shares outstanding during the year.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, as per Ind AS-7, issued by the ICAI where by profit for the 
period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals and accruals of past or 
future operating cash receipts and payments and item of income and expenses associated with investing or 
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are 
segregated. 

J. FIXED ASSETS 
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of fixed 
assets includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying assets up to the date the 
asset is ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses incurred up to that date. Subsequent 
expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future 
benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All repair and mainte-
nance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on the basis of Written Down Value over the useful lives of 
assets as per useful life prescribed under Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.  

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax liabilities 
and assets are measured using the tax rate enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.
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K. INVESTMENTS

LIST OF RELATED PARTIES:

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are 
carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments 
are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than 
temporary in the value of the investments. 

L. PROVISION & CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and are liable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of their porting period, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

M. PROVISION FOR GRATUITY
No provision for gratuity has been made as the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 are not applicable.

In the opinion of Board of Directors, the aggregate value of Current assets, Loans and Advances are realiz-
able in ordinary course of business and will not be less than the amount at which these are stated in the 
balance sheet.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the entity.
Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of 
assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting 
period.

When significant parts of fixed assets are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates 
them separately based on their specific useful lives.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of fixed assets are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2. OTHER NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

i.

Deferred Tax Liability for the year of Rs 100055.94/- as per Ind AS 12 on Accounting for Taxes on income 
pertaining to the timing between the accounting income and the taxable income has been recognized by 
the management in the Profit & Loss Account.

ii.

In the opinion of the company management, the operations of the company are considered as single 
segment hence Ind AS-108 on Segment reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
is not applicable.

iii.

In accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 24 on Related Parties notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the name of related parties where control exists and /or with whom 
transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by 
the Management are:

iv.

Particulars Name of Parties

Company Secretary (KMP)

Whole Time Director

Director

Ms. Poorti Goel

Mr. Pranshu Poddar

Ms. Sonali Gupta
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A. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

B. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

C. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Year Ended
March 31st, 2023

Ms. Poorti Goel

Ms. Sonali Gupta

Mr. Pranshu Poddar

3,09,400

6,00,000

4,20,000

Year Ended
March 31st, 2022

4,55,000

2,50,000

2,32,741

Designation

Company Secretary

Director

Whole Time Director

Particulars Year Ended
March 31st, 2023

As Statutory Audit Fees

Total 

25,000

25,000

Year Ended
March 31st, 2022

25,000

25,000

(In Rupees)

(In Rupees)

There is no contingent liability as on March 31, 2023.

3. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with 
the current year figures.

In terms of our report attached. 

Pradeep Kumar Jindal
Partner
M. No.  082646
UDIN: 23082646BGTTJW1370 

SD/-
Pranshu Poddar
DIN:- 09203812
Whole time Director

SD/-
Sonali Gupta
DIN:- 09277676
Director & CFO

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

For PVR-N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.  004062N

Place:  New Delhi
Date:    29.05.2023
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MGT-11

PROXYFORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my 
/ our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting the members of the Company to be held on Wednesday, Septem-
ber 27, 2023 at 10:00 A.M at Maharaja Banquets, A-1/20 B, Paschim Vihar, Rohtak Road, Near Metro Station Paschim 
Vihar(West), New Delhi-110063 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 
below.

I/We, being the member(s)of

Company hereby appoint:

shares of the above named 

Name of the company

Registered Office

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Folio No/ClientID*

DPID

1. of having email for failing him

2. of having email for failing him

3. of having email for failing him

S.N. Resolution(S)
Vote

For Against

ORDINARY BUSINESS

01

02

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2023 along with the reports of Independent Auditors and Directors thereon and in this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Ms. Sonali Gupta (DIN: 09277676), who retires by 
rotation in terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and showed her willingness to be re-appoint-
ed. and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the follow-
ing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval of the Members of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Ms. Sonali Gupta (DIN: 09277676), Director and CFO of the 
Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment, as a Director 
liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 
Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted
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Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. The proxy need not be a member of the company.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than 10% of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person 
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.
4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the Meeting in person if he / she so wishes. 
When a Member appoints a Proxy and both the Member and Proxy attend the Meeting, the Proxy will stand auto-
matically revoked.
5. This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly complete in all respects, properly stamped and submitted as per 
the applicable law. Incomplete form or form which remains unstamped or inadequately stamped or form upon 
which the stamps have not been cancelled will be treated as invalid.

7. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be 
considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple 
proxies will be treated as invalid.
8. As provided under Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, a shareholder may vote either for or 
against each resolution.

6. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.

Signature of Member Signature of Proxy holder

Across Revenue Stamp

Affix Revenue
Stamps of

Rs. 1/-

Signed this day of 2023

NOTE:-
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I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

I, hereby record my presence at the 37th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, at Maharaja Banquets, 
A-1/20 B, Paschim Vihar, Rohtak Road, Near Metro Station Paschim Vihar (West), New Delhi-110063, on Wednes-
day, the 27th September, 2023 at 10:00 A.M.

(Member’s /Proxy’s name in BLOCK Letters (Member’s /Proxy’s Signature)

Note: Shareholder/Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting 
and handover at the entrance duly signed.

Ledger Folio No Client ID NO. DP ID No

BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Reg. Off: 487/63, 1st Floor, National Market, Peeragarhi, New Delhi-110087
E-mail id: cs@be-swasth.com,Website:www.be-swasth.in

CIN: L93000DL1985PLC021397, Ph:011-46142960

37th Annual General Meeting, Wednesday, 27th September, 2023 at Maharaja Banquets
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FORM FOR UPDATING EMAIL ADDRESS

Please register my email address for the purpose of sending 37th Annual Report and other notices/documents in 
electronic mode.

To,
The Members
BE SWASTH HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Add. Office: 487/63, 1st Floor, 
National Market, Peeragarhi, New Delhi-110087
CIN: L93000DL1985PLC021397

DATE:

SUB: UPDATION OF EMAIL ADDRESS FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTS IN ELECTRONIC MODE

Signature of the First named Shareholder

Name:

Address:

Dear Sir,

S: No Name of the Shareholder Email Id Folio No. / DP Id Client Id



BESWASTHHEALTHCARE LIMITED

MAHARAJA BANQUET
A-1/20B, Paschim Vihar, Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110063

Route Map of the venue of 37thAnnual General Meeting

ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE

Day:

Date:

Time:

Venue:

Wednesday

September 27,2023

10:00 A.M.

A-1/20 B, Paschim Vihar, Rohtak Road, Near Metro Station Paschim Vihar (West), New Delhi-110063
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